RFP 230937 Oracle Fusion Application AR/GL Design and Integration
Questions and Answers
(All questions and answers will be included in this file; new Q&A are added at the bottom)

	Round 1 – 1/28/2013 

	1 
	Q
	Can you disclose the current software ERP application(s) including any cash management tools that are being used in the current environment?  Can you share any expectations regarding the migration of any existing configurations (ex., elements of the chart of accounts, any intercompany accounts or other types of sub-ledgers, or data for this RFP)?  Is there an expectation regarding automated invoices?  

	1 
	A
	PNNL has in-house built AR & GL systems.  Our goal is to establish industry best practices for both AR & GL process, then setup and configure AR & GL Fusion apps based upon those practices (processes).

It is likely that there will be some data migration from existing systems.  We desire to automate as much of the processes as possible through the delivered functionality within the fusion applications.

	Round 2 – 1/31/2013

	2
	Q
	Can you share the details of your roadmap so we can get a clearer view of the big picture?

	2
	A
	a.	PNNL’s Oracle Fusion roadmap is based upon the following flow:
i.	Project Execution Lifecycle
ii.	Enterprise Risk Management
iii.	Customer Relationship Management
iv.	Financial Management
v.	Human Capital Management
vi.	Information Management (UCM, Records…)
vii.	Procurement
viii.	Additional PNNL Business Information System Roadmap process TBD

	3
	Q
	What is the complete list of products purchased from Oracle?  How many users for each application?

	3
	A
	Fusion (Financials, HCM, PPM, Procurements, Hyperion, CRM, GRC, Middleware stack – Web Center Suite).  ~4,000-5,000 staff.

	4
	Q
	What other Applications (non-Oracle) will need to interfaced with the Oracle Fusion Applications?  Please provide any currently known integration requirements between the Oracle and non-Oracle Applications.

	4
	A
	People Soft (HCM, Procurements, Expense) Maximo, In-house applications.

	5
	Q
	Will conversions be included in the scope of this implementation?  Please provide more details.

	5
	A
	Minimal, open and pending actions.

	6
	Q
	Can we conclude that Phase I is a functional (GL &AR) and technical (interfaces and data conversion) requirements gathering and confirmation phase?

	6
	A
	Yes, phase I is functional (Process definition, functional requirements, user stories, some fit gap).

	7
	Q
	It appears that Phase II is the complete remainder of the project – starting at the Map and Gap analysis and ending with a production ready system – can you confirm?

	7
	A
	Yes 

	8
	Q
	What testing tools or products are you planning to leverage for this implementation (have they been purchased)?

	8
	A
	Please make recommendations. We have in-house solutions, they may or may not be appropriate.

	9
	Q
	Have you defined your Chart of Accounts?

	9
	A
	Yes, but Phase I will focus on potential changes or recommendations.

	10
	Q
	Have you defined your customer model?

	10
	A
	Yes, but Phase I will focus on potential changes or recommendations.

	11
	Q
	What current staff will be working with the consultants and what are their skill sets?

	11
	A
	a.	Functional business leads (15 years of corporate financial/accounting experiences)
b.	Project Manager and IT leads (15 plus years of experience)

	12
	Q
	Will you have business SMEs available to provide requirements and assist with testing for the project?    At what percentage would they be available to participate?

	12
	A
	Yes, dedicated business lead and support staff.  50% or greater.

	13
	Q
	Do you have a dedicated Project Manager for this project?

	13
	A
	Yes 

	14
	Q
	Do you have dedicated Oracle Applications Database Administrator (DBA) resources for this project?

	14
	A
	Yes 

	15
	Q
	Do you have an Oracle Applications System Administration resource for this project?

	15
	A
	Yes 

	16
	Q
	Do you have dedicated Oracle Applications Technical/Development resources that have Oracle Financials and/or the Fusion Middleware skill sets/experience (for report modifications, customizations, interfaces, and/or conversions)?

	16
	A
	Yes 

	17
	Q
	What level of software evaluation was completed prior to the Fusion Applications decision?

	17
	A
	9 month assessment

	18
	Q
	Are there high level or detailed level business requirements documented for GL and AR?

	18
	A
	Only high level, detail should come from Phase I.

	19
	Q
	What level are your current processes documented (detailed with swim lanes or just high level)?

	19
	A
	High, some user stories/use cases based upon work related to Fusion PPM.

	20
	Q
	There was mention of POC (Proof of Concept) in the RFP; do you use the term POC and CRP (Conference Room Pilot) interchangeably?

	20
	A
	Interchangeable

	21
	Q
	Do you have a strong desire to follow a certain approach or project method for this implementation?  

	21
	A
	Open to recommendations.

	22
	Q
	Have you acquired the hardware environment to run the system?

	22
	A
	Yes, everything is on-premise.

	23
	Q
	Do you have adequate infrastructure support staff to work on the implementation?

	23
	A
	Yes 

	24
	Q
	Is there a minimum Revenue or employee size that the bidding organization must have?

	24
	A
	No 

	25
	Q
	It appears that the RFP is for 1 consultant.  Is that accurate and do you have any idea how long this engagement will be?

	25
	A
	Phase I is business consulting for AR/GL, Phase II is for implementation.  Your proposal will determine quantity of consultants.

	26
	Q
	Must the company submitting the RFP have references for this exact type of work or will our consultants references for this type of work suffice?

	26
	A
	Any relevant experiences will suffice.

	27
	Q
	Do you want to see our consultants resume along with the RFP?

	27
	A
	Yes 

	28
	Q
	What is the main objective/business driver to select Fusion Applications instead of ERP as the application of choice?

	28
	A
	Business decision based upon alignment with PNNL business objectives.

	29
	Q
	Is PNNL looking for business consultants or applications consultants? Fusion has a bit more of an open canvas feel where a business consultant can design the industry best practice process. An application consultant will design based on the ERP specific best practice.

	29
	A
	Both

	30
	Q
	Is there an established budget? If so, how much is it?

	30
	A
	We are looking for completion to evaluate total project budget.

	31
	Q
	How deep will “best practices” analysis go? Package enabled re-engineering or deeper, e.g., COA redesign, shared services, other process changes (Page 12)?

	31
	A
	Share services and other processes.

	32
	Q
	It looks like this will be a project, not staff augmentation. Is it expected that the proposal would include project management and a list of deliverables in the response?

	32
	A
	We can work with both options; please propose your practices recommendations. Deliverable critical to success.

	33
	Q
	Will PNNL purchase education from Oracle to train the core project team?

	33
	A
	Yes

	34
	Q
	What is the approach to train end users – train the trainer?

	34
	A
	Yes, use of UPKs.

	35
	Q
	What staffing can PNNL commit to the project – PM, business, technical, etc.?

	35
	A
	All if need be.

	36
	Q
	Is there any estimated end date for Phase II? (Page 13.C)

	36
	A
	We would like to “go live” with GL 10/1/2014.

	37
	Q
	Will there be a phased roll-out or “big-bang”?

	37
	A
	Phased is preferred.

	38
	Q
	What are the infrastructure requirements, e.g., SAAS, hosted, on premise? Should the contractor provide DBA, sys admins, and/or networking resources?

	38
	A
	On premise, PNNL has a dedicated team.

	39
	Q
	Will all work be done on-site at PNNL in Richland or will project team members need to travel to other locations?

	39
	A
	Most is on-site. No other sites, would consider working remotely.

	40
	Q
	Which PPM is PNNL currently implementing – Primavera or Fusion (or both)?

	40
	A
	Fusion with integration to Primavera.

	41
	Q
	What are the integration requirements, i.e., what is the existing application architecture that Fusion AR and GL will need to integrate with? Payables, HR, Payroll, Procurement, Assets, Orders, CRM, MDM, etc.

	41
	A
	Most transaction feeder systems as noted above.

	42
	Q
	Are any third party applications being implemented (BI, Vertex, etc.)?

	42
	A
	Oracle BI, middleware-Web Center were appropriate.

	43
	Q
	What is AR pre-sale and post-sale (page 12)?

	43
	A
	Pre-sale, information from proposals.  Post-sale, contract information to support AR process.

	44
	Q
	Is the change management referenced in Phase II software change management or organizational change management? (page 12)

	44
	A
	More Org focused.  We have a IT change management process as-well.

	45
	Q
	How will organizational change management be addressed?

	45
	A
	We have a defined process and lead to work the change management needs.

	46
	Q
	Is the org chart of the PNNL website representative of the number of orgs? Do they share a common chart of accounts, calendar and functional currency?

	46
	A
	Yes

	47
	Q
	What is the approximate number of users of each module - AR and GL?

	47
	A
	8-12, back office.  50 business office end users.

	48
	Q
	Is Fusion AR and GL being implemented as a technology foundation only or are there specific business benefits being targeted? If so, what are they? (page 12)

	48
	A
	AR and GL are critical to the full deployment of Fusion PPM.

	49
	Q
	Are there any known areas or functionality that are out of scope, e.g., intercompany, budgeting, etc.?

	49
	A
	The two that you referenced above are borderline, IP related activities as-well.

	50
	Q
	Are there any known functional gaps?

	50
	A
	Not at this time, Fusion is on R6.

	51
	Q
	Will custom reporting be required? Custom invoicing?

	51
	A
	Not desirable, but possible.  More reporting.

	52
	Q
	Are there any international requirements (currency, language, reporting, etc.)?

	52
	A
	No

	53
	Q
	What are data conversion requirements? GL balances for X years, active customers, open invoices, etc.?

	53
	A
	No desirable, open, pending actions will need to be addressed.

	54
	Q
	Are there any unique regulatory requirements?

	54
	A
	Many, DOE accounting handbook.

	55
	Q
	Is encumbrance accounting required?

	55
	A
	Not currently

	56
	Q
	Is Grant Accounting required and if so, is it all handled by the PPM?

	56
	A
	No

	57
	Q
	Will the sample cost proposal (Page 9) become the ceiling price – as per the link to the template?

	57
	A
	No 

	58
	Q
	PNNL is not looking for a “not to exceed” contract, correct?

	58
	A
	PNNL is looking to place a contract that meets the stated objectives.

	59
	Q
	What Oracle Fusion Middleware products has PNNL licensed? (e.g., WebLogic Server, SOA Suite, WebCenter, OBIEE, etc.)

	59
	A
	Weblogic Suite, numerous Management Packs, ID and Access Management, SOA suite, Webcenter Suite, others

	60
	Q
	How is PNNL envisioning the use of WebCenter? What WebCenter or Fusion Middleware development is anticipated, if any? (Page 12)

	60
	A
	UCM and records 

	61
	Q
	Does PNNL expect contractor to install Oracle Fusion Applications as part of the POC?

	61
	A
	No

	62
	Q
	Does PNNL expect contractor to install and configure Oracle Fusion Middleware, including WebCenter and other products?

	62
	A
	No, understand integration with other Fusion apps/technologies, yes. 

	63
	Q
	For contractor staff members who are foreign nationals, we understand that they will require a minimum of 35 business days until they have access to the PNNL campus and work environment. Does PNNL expert these resources to be billable on the project during those 35+ business days or on hold until access is granted?

	63
	A
	We have to hold until access has been granted.

	64
	Q
	We understand PNNL currently operates custom systems for accounts receivable and general ledger accounting and reporting.  Please provide a list of all incoming and outgoing interfaces for these existing systems.  For each interface, please indicate: a) incoming vs. outgoing;  b) frequency (daily, weekly, monthly, etc.); c) average transaction volume; d) the technology platform for the interfacing system (Oracle release xx, Maximo, release xx, custom, etc.;  e) whether or not the interface is scheduled to be replaced or deleted by another initiative.

	64
	A
	PNNL does roughly $1B in business volume annually.  All business transactional systems touch PNNL’s core financial processing system (GL); the majority is weekly. Interfacing systems vary from COTs (PeopleSoft, Maximo, to in-house custom apps).  Interfacing systems (transactional systems) will be replaced in future initiatives.

	65
	Q
	For the existing accounts receivable and general ledger systems, please list the primary types of open data entities.  For example, GL might include journals and budgets and AR might include credit memos, debit memos, and invoices.

	65
	A
	Our goal is to define “best practices” in the phase I efforts.

	66
	Q
	What is the total number of users for the existing accounts receivable and general ledger systems?  Please stratify the users based on their role: transaction input, transaction approvers, reporting, and financial reconciliation & analysis.

	66
	A
	We have 18-24 back office staff and another 50 for so external business office users.

	67
	Q
	Will PNNL provide development, test, and training environments and will Oracle fusion software be installed prior to Phase II initiation?  If so, are there any Service Level Agreements from a 3rd party hosting provider we need to comply with?

	67
	A
	Yes.  All on-premise.

	68
	Q
	Has PNNL chosen a training management tool (such as Oracle’s UPK) and will it be installed prior to Phase II initiation?

	68
	A
	UPK, already installed for other uses.

	69
	Q
	Has PNNL chosen a testing management tool set and will it be installed prior to Phase II initiation?

	69
	A
	Yes, in use for PPM deployment.

	70
	Q
	Will PNNL provide Oracle fusion development and user test licenses?

	70
	A
	Yes, for PNNL staff.

	71
	Q
	What are PNNL’s processes, protocols, and required approvals to migrate a business system from a development environment to a production environment?  In addition, please describe where the handoff between the successful bidder and PNNL occurs once a business system is considered production ready.

	71
	A
	PNNL has a change management process, that process addresses business system deployments, archiving and successful handoff to production (M&O) support.

	72
	Q
	The background paragraph from the Statement of Work ends with “PNNL is looking for a Financial Management/Accounting business consultant with relevant industry knowledge in General Ledger (GL) and Accounts Receivable (AR) “Best Practices” to advise PNNL on the design and implementation of these business processes and solutions.”  This statement implies the scope of work only involves advising PNNL based on Financial Management / Accounting industry knowledge.  However, the activities outlined in Phase II of the Statement of Work indicate a successful bidder will execute design and implementation tasks that will require both functional business knowledge and highly technical skills.  Please clarify the intent of the statement in the background paragraph in light of the total requirements in Phase II.  

	72
	A
	Phase I does focus all on process and recommend “best practices”.  Phase II is more of a transition from functional requirements (process based user stories, use cases, etc...) to fit gap of Fusion AR & GL apps.  Then a continuation of transition into full project scope focused on deployment of “to be” requirements.  This is a mix of functional business knowledge and technical.

	73
	Q
	The answers to these questions impact our resource model, levels, labor pricing, and other direct costs pricing for Phase II as described in the Statement of Work.  Please consider a two week extension of the proposal due date to allow for answering the questions.

	73
	A
	After discussion, it was agreed to a one week extension to noon, Pacific time, February 18, 2013.  Dates for clarification question and notice of intent will be extended accordingly.  A formal RFP Amendment document will be issued for acknowledgement signature.

	74
	Q
	Is PNNL looking for vendor to install the modules?  And is PNNL looking for the vendor to install and configure the underlying infrastructure for the financial modules including Weblogic Server, Webcenter, repository databases and others?

	74
	A
	No 

	75
	Q
	Has product been installed completely?  If so, what is the current state of installation. Is vendor to provision?  if not completely installed, will all necessary hardware be available by the start of the period of performance?  If currently installed, are version upgrades required before development begins?  And what environments are currently functional: dev, test, QA, production?

	75
	A
	All owned Fusion applications have been installed and are the latest release available from Oracle Development. Environments (Dev, test, QA, production only for PPM.)

	76
	Q
	Does PNNL done a bare metal install or using OVM?  Could you please provide software and versions for each component, depending on the response.  If installation has not happened yet, please provide details of the plan.

	76
	A
	Both

	77
	Q
	What point release are you on and what point release do you want to be on?  Please provide data for all components in the technology stack - apps and infrastructure.

	77
	A
	TBD as we progress through the PPM deployment.

	78
	Q
	What percentage of Functional vs. Technical expertise is required?  Can you attach a percentage to the amount of custom application development that will be required?

	78
	A
	We are hoping to minimize customizations and deploy as close as possible to delivered functionality after setup and configuration.

	79
	Q
	Project Management - are we to provide, will this be provided by PNNL or does PNNL expect a combination of PNNL PM and Vendor PM? Who will provide system and integration, performance and other testing resources - vendor or PNNL?

	79
	A
	PM, we are open to recommendation; we have worked with both methods.  Performance and testing by PNNL.

	80
	Q
	Does PNNL foresee the SOW being driven more by a business consultant (e.g., user requirements, conduct use cases, configuring the modules, populating reference data) or a technical consultant (e.g., software standup, configuration, tuning, high availability best practices, application deployment)?  Does the Government desire separate business consulting and technical consulting staff from the vendor, or can the vendor supply staff that have both business and technical capabilities?

	80
	A
	We see Phase I as business and Phase II as both.  If an individual has both skill sets, that is reasonable.

	81
	Q
	Is PNNL looking for an architect to design the solution and/or resources to implement?  Does PNNL have a resource already on site that is responsible for enterprise architecture?

	81
	A
	EA onsite, reports to CIO, looking for resources to help define processes (Phase I) and implementation (Phase II).

	82
	Q
	For the proposal instructions associated with Volume 2 – Technical Proposal, the RFP states (on p. 6 of 11) “The following shall be included for EACH bullet of the SOW for both Phase I and Phase II…”  We would like confirmation that “EACH bullet” means each of item 1 through item 9 in the SOW.

	82
	A
	Yes 

	83
	Q
	For the proposal instructions associated with Volume 3 – Financial Proposal, the RFP states (on p. 7 of 11) that for Part B, the offeror is to provide confirmation of acceptance of the General Provisions.  We would like confirmation that the referenced General Provisions are “General Provisions Applicable to Labor-Hour/Time and Materials Contracts, Form A-409.10-LH dated November 2012”, which are referenced on page 5 of 11 of the RFP.

	83
	A
	Yes 

	84
	Q
	For the proposal instructions associated with Volume 3 – Financial Proposal, the RFP states (on p. 7 of 11) in Part A that the offeror is to complete the Contract Pricing Proposal for LH-TM Contracts form.  On that form under section D (Detail Description of Fully Burdened Labor), there is no place that is explicitly designated for the Fringe component of the Direct Labor cost build-up.  We would like concurrence that we can use the “Other” Column for the inclusion of Fringe costs on Direct Labor.

	84
	A
	Yes, you can use the Other column.  We require the fully burdened labor rate in the last column to calculate price.

	85
	Q
	Can we have a topographic diagram of the hardware landscape?

	85
	A
	No

	86
	Q
	Are you currently using a co-existence model to integrate your Fusion Apps (SCM) to your existing Oracle (?) ERP?

	86
	A
	Yes, we have many transitional system that will co-exist (PeopleSoft and in-house custom apps).

	87
	Q
	Can you provide an applications landscape diagram and/or a context diagram showing all applications currently in use at PNNL?

	87
	A
	No

	88
	Q
	Do you have a single consolidated instance or site specific multiple installations?

	88
	A
	For Fusion, single instance.

	89
	Q
	Elaborate more on current application Landscape and Legacy systems used? (with modules details)

	89
	A
	PeopleSoft, Maximo, in-house custom, open source.

	90
	Q
	What is your current version of Apps, if any? What are the modules used?

	90
	A
	Fusion will be on R6.

	91
	Q
	Is there any Localization Installed or proposed to install? If yes, details (applicable only for non-US implementations)

	91
	A
	Not at this time.

	92
	Q
	Currently Fusion Project Portfolio Management implementation is in Progress. Please identify dependencies and impact to AR/GL implementation program, if any.
Also, if you have any other parallel projects going on having impact on AR/GL implementation, please elaborate.

	92
	A
	PPM ties closely to AR and is dependent upon GL functionally to keep project costing information current.  No other improvement projects directly impact AR/GL.

	93
	Q
	List the customizations (RICEW) you have and how these have been done at a high level.  What are the changes done to the core application tables/modules?
-Reports
-Interfaces
-Workflow
-Alerts
-Personalization
- Custom Forms
- PL/SQL/Triggers
Note: This is required only if client is using AR/GL on any Oracle instance. Otherwise, we will do estimations on some assumptions

	93
	A
	Minimal customizations to PPM.  No other customizations to Fusion apps.

	94
	Q
	Please provide current Oracle EBS organization structure, if any?  Number of set of Books (Ledgers), LE and operating units currently used? Any plan for consolidation of OUs or addition of OUs?

	94
	A
	None, no EBS deployment.

	95
	Q
	Level of Automation expected by implementing Fusion solution?

	95
	A
	Based upon recommendations from Phase I, to the extent possible within Fusion delivered solutions.

	96
	Q
	What is the Current Tax calculation Engine used for AR? Any changes expected in ‘To-Be’ process?

	96
	A
	None, in-house.  Looking for recommendations in Phase I.

	97
	Q
	Is currently Advance collection system is being used?

	97
	A
	A process, in-house and not automated.

	98
	Q
	Are you intending to leverage Fusion solution for IFRS reporting needs?

	98
	A
	No

	99
	Q
	Please let us know what are the activities involved in AR Pre-Sales and if there is any specific Financial/accounting information that would need to be generated in the system.

	99
	A
	Pre-sales would include proposal information; this could be easily retrievable by AR staff.

	100
	Q
	By Benchmarking and Performance Measures – Are you referring to some KPI’s you want to measure your receivables and Financial Accounting functions? Can you please indicate some of the measures you would like to review?

	100
	A
	Yes, KPI.  The Phase I process should recommend measures.

	101
	Q
	What are the Key business goals and objectives you expect to be addressed with implementation of Fusion GL and AR?

	101
	A
	Continuation of Fusion apps deployment and enhancing the PPM deployment, streamline AR and GL process and reduce in-house custom applications footprint.

	102
	Q
	Please elaborate on current GL & AR Risks.

	102
	A
	Early release (Fusion), moving from in-house process/solution to standard practice.

	103
	Q
	Any business needs to use Enterprise Governance Risk and Compliance Manager (Enterprise GRC Manager)?

	103
	A
	Yes, we will need to look at our A-123 controls during Phase I efforts.

	104
	Q
	Current approach to Accounting? Accounting methods, conventions, transactions types used for AR transactions?

	104
	A
	We follow DOE accounting standards, GAAP, CAS, etc., very manual.

	105
	Q
	Any data feed to current AR and GL system?

	105
	A
	Yes, many to GL, fewer to AR.

	106
	Q
	Current Reporting tool for Monthly Profit and Loss A/C, Balance Sheets, Cash Flow statement etc.

	106
	A
	All in-house, we use DOE’s STARs tool for monthly contractor reporting to DOE.

	107
	Q
	Is Multi-Org Implemented currently?

	107
	A
	No, all reporting based upon PNNL.

	108
	Q
	Do you use any consolidation tool?

	108
	A
	Not related to AR and GL.

	109
	Q
	Please let us know the scope and guidelines for Implementation of Security and control as per latest legal compliance in Fusion application solutions for GL/AR modules

	109
	A
	We will follow all of the labs standards for security, this has already been defined for PPM.

	110
	Q
	What are the current tools being used for Automation testing? Any preference on’ to-be’ automation testing tools?

	110
	A
	We have a current set of solution for Fusion PPM and will continue to utilize those solutions.

	111
	Q
	Is performance testing in scope?

	111
	A
	Limited, addressing performance issue ongoing with Oracle Development.

	112
	Q
	Do Merger and Acquisitions take place?  How often?

	112
	A
	No

	113
	Q
	What is the Budgeting tool being currently used?

	113
	A
	In-house tool, own Hyperion Suite.

	114
	Q
	Type and Volume of transactions during peak hours of the day and during month end?

	114
	A
	Billing, 1,000-1,500 per month, 12,000-13,000 per fiscal year.

	115
	Q
	What is the time frame expected for meeting your objectives by implementing Fusion solution?

	115
	A
	GL by 10/1/2014, AR within that timeframe.

	116
	Q
	Do you use Financials Data warehouse or are you looking to replace it? What is a current Reporting strategy? 

	116
	A
	Oracle BI, we have a financial data warehouse.

	117
	Q
	Is PNNL expecting Organizational Change Management? Position to be provided by Vendor?
Version? How many have you added?

	117
	A
	Yes, PNNL managed.

	118
	Q
	What is your current database size? Are there any specific pain areas or pain points that are currently affecting the performance of the existing database or applications? (if using Oracle Database for AR/GL)

	118
	A
	PNNL continues to work with Oracle Development of tuning performance on PPM and will do so going forward with additional Fusion applications.

	119
	Q
	Any additional information?

	119
	A
	Good questions!

	Round 3 – 2/4/2013

	120
	Q
	In this proposal, do you seek project management expertise separately from the technical experience sought?

	120
	A
	Yes 

	121
	Q
	Are you excluding small certified MBE firms or rather seeking larger (> 500 employees) firms to respond?

	121
	A
	All businesses are invited to propose, regardless of size.

	122
	Q
	Is there is a list publically available of the companies that are proposing on this work?  

	122
	A
	Not to our knowledge, nor does PNNL publish our vendor list. 

	123
	Q
	Is PNNL planning to implement Federal version of Fusion or Commercial version?

	123
	A
	Commercial

	124
	Q
	Will PNNL provide Oracle fusion development and user test licenses for offeror’s staff?

	124
	A
	Yes 

	125
	Q
	It is our understanding that Oracle Fusion Financials has not currently been certified yet for Federal accounting.  Is it the intention to use the PNNL as a BETA site for the Federal financials certification process in collaboration with Oracle?

	125
	A
	No

	126
	Q
	It was clarified during the recent Q&A that remote work is allowed; are we allowed to propose travel budget for occasional travel to Richland, WA?

	126
	A
	Yes 

	127
	Q
	On page 5 of 11, in Performance Schedule,” it states “Contractor shall submit the contract award and provide written, electronic status reports by the 15th of each succeeding month.”  What do you mean by the underlined statement?  

	127
	A
	The sentence:  “Contractor shall submit the contract award and provide written, electronic status reports by the 15th of each succeeding month” is being removed from the RFP.  Reporting responsibilities will be addressed in the contract.

	128
	Q
	On page 6 of 11, in Part B, you mention the NAICS code of 514512 related to the reps and certs A.1, and small business size standard of $25.5M for A.2.  Why?  Is this RFP set aside for or restricted to Small Business competition only?  Is there a preference for Small Business?

	128
	A
	The NAICS codes are provided to assist companies in making a determination on business size.  The RFP is open to all businesses, Large or Small.

	129
	Q
	On page 6 of 11, Volume 2 - Technical Proposal maximum is 50 pages.  Does this include resumes?

	129
	A
	No, Resumes are not included in the page count.

	130
	Q
	On page 11 of 11, the checklist mentions “Executed PNNL Request for Proposal (to be returned with offerors Proposal).”  What do you mean exactly?  Complete and return the fill-ins on page 1 and 11; or complete the fill-ins on page 1 and 11 and return the entire document?

	130
	A
	Please fill out pages 1 and 11 and return with your proposal.

	131
	Q
	On page 11 of 11, the checklist mentions “Insurance Certificate, if currently available (required before award of contract).”  Is this required with the proposal?

	131
	A
	The insurance certificate will be required after award and before a visit from a supplier.

	132
	Q
	Is EVM reporting required?  Does PNNL have an EVM system in place?  How does PNNL envision the contractor interface with that system?

	132
	A
	Yes, yes, all projects planned in P6.

	133
	Q
	Is PNNL currently using any tools for tracking bugs and issues?

	133
	A
	Yes, in-house developed and Oracle development team project sites.

	134
	Q
	Our understanding is that Parallel testing  is a joint responsibility between PNNL  and Cognizant functional team, and would done either during SIT or UAT Phase ,with the support of Cognizant development and QA Team? PNNL team support is required with 3rd party or legacy systems during parallel testing. Let us know, if our understanding is correct?

	134
	A
	Yes

	135
	Q
	Does the Performance testing scope include Script development for critical business scenarios, execution performance test such as Load, Stress, Endurance and Volume and also providing basic recommendations?

	135
	A
	Yes 

	136
	Q
	Does PNNL have any Performance test tool like Load runner or Silk performer, which can be leveraged for this engagement?

	136
	A
	Yes 

	137
	Q
	Is the implementation of Oracle Fusions AR and GL replacing a legacy system?

	137
	A
	Yes 

	138
	Q
	Does PNNL currently have the technical infrastructure in place to support Oracle Fusion Financials (Fusion Middleware, etc.)?

	138
	A
	Yes 

	139
	Q
	Will the implementation include integration with other PNNL systems?

	139
	A
	Yes 

	140
	Q
	In the SOW section (pg. 12), it mentions that PNNL is looking for a functional consultant.  Can PNNL confirm that this is the only staff they are looking for to support this project?  

	140
	A
	Phase I, business consulting (functional) Phase II, technical and functional.

	141
	Q
	My understanding is that this was an unrestricted bid however in the body of the solicitation you reference small business NIACS Codes. Can you clarify if this is an open bid please?

Here is the section I am referencing below:  

Part B – Business Management Information
In this section, the offeror shall provide the following information:
Completed Representation and Certification – Commercial form, which is found at: http://www.pnl.gov/contracts/documents/solicitations.asp 
-The NAICS code for section A.1 of the Representations and Certifications is 541512
-The size standard for section A.2 is $25.5M. (If a manufacturing NAICS code is used, a wholesale trade or retail trade business concern submitting an offer or quote is categorized as a "non-manufacturer" and deemed small if it has 500 or fewer employees and meets the requirements of 13 CFR 121.406)

	141
	A
	This RFP is open to all companies, regardless of business size.    The NAICS codes were provided to assist potential suppliers in determining their business size.  

	142
	Q
	If any of our legal team has any questions on the compliance side of things, would those questions go to you as well to distribute?

	142
	A
	Yes, all questions come to Kim and Doug and we’ll route accordingly to obtain the answers.

	143
	Q
	Does remote mean consultants work within the USA office locations or can they be offshore?

	143
	A
	USA office locations only.  All consultants must have the ability to visit the Laboratory and be badged in accordance with the US Department of Energy’s Policies and Procedures on Visitors and Guests.  

	144
	Q
	Can we use our teaming partner's GSA schedule for pricing?

	144
	A
	PNNL is authorized to receive and accept GSA pricing.

	145
	Q
	Is RFP 230937, Oracle Fusion AR/GL Design and Implementation, a new procurement or a follow-on to previous work?  

	145
	A
	New 

	146
	Q
	If it is a re-compete, could you please provide the incumbent name, contract number, contract award dollar amount, and period of performance dates?

	146
	A
	N/A
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	147
	Q
	It is my understanding that your preference is to have proposal responses submitted by one prime contractor vs. a teamed approach, can you confirm?

	147
	A
	It is Battelle’s intent to award a contract to a prime contractor who will be responsible for their team.  

	148
	Q
	Technical infrastructure data flow diagram as is. Can we have a high level diagram?

	148
	A
	Once an award has been made.

	149
	Q
	Is BPA Suite installed?  BPM?  EM?  For data modeling, business process engineering, implementation, monitoring and etc.

	149
	A
	Yes, not currently in use.

	150
	Q
	Integration.  Are you anticipating integration? Legacy and Fusion. Do you have a preliminary scope?  High level.

	150
	A
	Some, high level.

	151
	Q
	PeopleSoft GL and AR?  Are you expecting co-existence implementation?  Are you expecting accounting hub implementation?  Or parallel to retire PeopleSoft.

	151
	A
	We have a in-house solution for AR and GL, parallel operations for some time is anticipated. Accounting hub, yes.

	152
	Q
	Governance, Risks and compliance?  Are you planning to purchase software?  Do you have vendor or expecting us to bundle this as part of solutions?

	152
	A
	We own Fusion GRC, phase I scope will help to define use case.

	153
	Q
	Do you have security administrator?  In public sector, the security plays important piece of install, implementation, maintenance, and etc.  Are you in full compliance with as is or in the build?

	153
	A
	Yes

	154
	Q
	Change Control- do you have this in place?

	154
	A
	Yes

	155
	Q
	Training- is training part of the bundle proposal?

	155
	A
	Yes, some elements.

	156
	Q
	Maintenance and Support- post implementation?

	157
	A
	All PNNL

	158
	Q
	Would PNNL provide information on the milestones, work-products, deliverables, and associated acceptance criteria it associates with each of the 2 phases listed in the RFP SOW?  
1.  What the expected user volume?
2.  What number of roles will be touching system?
3.  What is the number of transactions?
4.  Does PNNL prefer a Clustered or HA environment?
5.  Is DR environment included?

	158
	A
	Yes, included in previous answers.

	159
	Q
	The RFP calls for resumes.  Can you please clarify:  do you want full detailed resumes or cameos?  Do you want a ‘resume’ for every position or just key personnel?

	159
	A
	Key personnel, and as detailed as possible.

	160
	Q
	It is mentioned in the RFP that it would take 35 days to onboard foreign nationals into the system.  Can you please clarify if it would take 35 days to onboard foreign nationals to obtain security clearances in order to start the work at PNNL site, or foreign national can start work from one of the vendor US based locations & after 35 days can be relocated to PNNL work site? 

	160
	A
	Approximately 35 days before a foreign national can perform work for PNNL, regardless of work location.   There are multiple factors that determine access; each case will be individual.  All work will be performed in the US.

	161
	Q
	What are the number of companies (Legal Entity) that operate currently under PNNL?

	161
	A
	None.  The Pacific Northwest National Laboratory is managed by Battelle Memorial Institute, Pacific Northwest Division.

	162
	Q
	Which of the Battelle general provisions documents are we expected to review and conform to?  Please provide editable (.doc versions) of all applicable documents?

	162
	A
	Reference pages 6 and 7 of the RFP, Volumes I and 3, as well as the Proposal checklist on page 11.  The forms are all located at the PNNL Acquisition Supplier Portal/Solicitations website:  http://www.pnnl.gov/contracts/  - click on Documents on the right side.
The Word version of the RFP is attached, however, the PDF version is the official version for this RFP.  If any changes are made to the Word version to suit your proposal, the original PDF version of the documents will prevail.  

	163
	Q
	Please share the expected commencement dates for Phase I & Phase II.  Do you expect these two phases to be sequentially planned or are you open for overlapping execution of these two phases?

	163
	A
	Anticipate Phase I start 3/13, Phase II start 5/13

	164
	Q
	If you expect Phase I and Phase II to be sequential, how much time do you plan between these phases?  You have mentioned that you would like to “Go Live” with GL by 10/1/2014.

	164
	A
	Phase I, 2-3 months, Phase II based upon recommendation from Phase I and go live by 10/1/14.

	165
	Q
	Do you see any risk in going live earlier than 10/1/2014?  Are you open for an earlier "Go Live"?

	165
	A
	Some challenges, could explore options.

	166
	Q
	Can you please share the business drivers/reasons for that "Go Live" date (10/1/2014)?  Is there any dependency on PPM project go live date? 

	166
	A
	Fiscal year start-up.  No impact on PPM.

	167
	Q
	Question #54 in the original questionnaire refers to Department of Energy (DOE) accounting requirements.  Can you provide some definition of what the DOE accounting handbook/ requirements entail?

	167
	A
	They are consistent with CAS and GAAP

	168
	Q
	Is PNNL currently using Approval workflow for GL/AR transactions?

	168
	A
	Yes, manual

	169
	Q
	Other than the Project Portfolio Management implementation, is there any plan to implement Fusion Project costing /Billing modules?

	169
	A
	Yes

	170
	Q
	What is the volume of COA segment values and customer master data?

	170
	A
	 12-15 segments, 1000+ customers.

	171
	Q
	Will the PNNL technical team build out the data conversions and interfaces identified for Fusion AR/GL or would they like the subcontractor to assume this as part of scope?

	171
	A
	Combination

	172
	Q
	Given your expectation to go live with GL on Oct 2014, are you expecting Phase 2 to last from CY 2013 Q2 to Oct 2014?  Should the project timeline from the subcontractor reflect this timeline?

	172
	A
	No, contractor could finish during parallel operations

	173
	Q
	Is the primary PNNL business offer around R&D activities?

	173
	A
	Yes, and project management

	174
	Q
	Is the business model only B2B – lab to lab (including non-profit and for profit) but no B2C activity?

	174
	A
	Yes

	175
	Q
	Do the following types of revenue streams apply?
0. Collaborative development (partnership and service agreements with billable components)
0. Technology transfer and delivery (outright sell of licensing, products, and services)
0. Mentoring (is this community service or is this billable?)
0. Training and Education (possibly including on-site, web-based courses and curriculums?)

	175
	A
	Yes

	176
	Q
	Are there any traditional types of AR exposures such as credit exposure and fraud?  

	176
	A
	Limited

	177
	Q
	Is there already a solid pricing and costing model in place or was this developed as part of the PPM project?

	177
	A
	PPM

	178
	Q
	Regarding the project roadmap, procurement comes at the end but will there be any components of expense management tied to the GL implementation?

	178
	A
	All business transaction flow back to GL, procurements, labor, expense, ect.

	179
	Q
	Regarding information management, are there any components of that part of the project that will be built with the AR activities to manage and capture all the billable activities for the period – along with supporting documentation?

	179
	A
	Possible, based upon Phase I recommendations

	180
	Q
	If there are any non-confidential financial flows associated with the business model that can be shared, that would be great.  

	180
	A
	None at this time

	181
	Q
	Have you considered the co-existence module Fusion Accounting Hub? 

	181
	A
	Yes, the accounting hub is critical.

	182
	Q
	We understand that you will have potential changes to your chart of account structure.  Do you intend to change the chart of account values as well?

	182
	A
	We might, it should be something discussed in the Phase I efforts.

	183
	Q
	How many systems require one-time conversion to Fusion GL?

	183
	A
	Phase I effort should help to define this.

	184
	Q
	Do you think some system might require on-going interface to Fusion GL?

	184
	A
	Yes

	185
	Q
	Invoicing, Aging reports, P&L statement, Balance Sheet, Income statement are some standard reports available in most financial ERP products.  How many reports are generated in the existing systems that are specific to your business needs and not really a standard report?

	185
	A
	We will define required reporting for AR in Phase I efforts.

	186
	Q
	We understand the work needs to be done onsite. Are there any restrictions around contractors with Visa? Or do the contractors need to be only Citizens?

	186
	A
	Visa will work, takes alittle longer to clear back ground check.

	187
	Q
	Is there a reason why the go live is planned for 10/1/2014?  Can we propose a shorter implementation cycle?

	187
	A
	Fiscal year cut over.  Yes, we should look at options.

	188
	Q
	What is Financial year period? Jan - Dec? or Oct- Sep?

	188
	A
	October to September

	189
	Q
	There was a question (64) on the interfaces but we could not find the details that had been asked for.  Can PNNL provide the list / total number of interfaces? 

	189
	A
	We would like to define total number in Phase I efforts.

	191
	Q
	Is PNNL expecting only a rate card for Phase 1 and Phase 2?

	191
	A
	We are unfamiliar with the term “rate card.”
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	192
	Q
	How many source systems do you intend to integrate with Oracle Financials Accounting Hub (FAH)?

	192
	A
	ROM six or more

	193
	Q
	How many transaction types do you intend to pass through Oracle Financials Accounting Hub (FAH)?

	193
	A
	Dozen

	194
	Q
	What is the approximate volume of transactions of the product system that will be early candidates for integration with Oracle Financials Accounting Hub (FAH)?

	194
	A
	Not sure at this time

	195
	Q
	Have you established any Performance Benchmark you would require from Oracle Financials Accounting Hub (FAH)?

	195
	A
	No, discover could happen in Phase I

	196
	Q
	What are the Key business goals and objectives you expect to be addressed with the implementation of Oracle Financials Accounting Hub (FAH)?

	196
	A
	Consistency, integration with PPM, standard approach.

	197
	Q
	Do you have any COA or reporting issue that you are attempting to solve when implementing Oracle Financials Accounting Hub (FAH)?

	197
	A
	No issue, standardize approach

	198
	Q
	Are you attempting to resolve any Reconciliation or data issue by implementing Oracle Financials Accounting Hub (FAH)?

	198
	A
	NO

	199
	Q
	What is the timeframe for meeting your objectives for Oracle Financials Accounting Hub (FAH) implementation?

	199
	A
	Go live by 10/1/14.

	200
	Q
	What do you perceive as the primary advantage of using Oracle Financials Accounting Hub (FAH) solution?

	200
	A
	Integration with other Fusion and non-Fusion applications

	201
	Q
	How many transactions must be accounted per hour at peak volume?

	201
	A
	Will be defined in Phase I

	202
	Q
	Are performance testing SLAs already available or is Cognizant's Performance Testing team expected to do a deep-dive workload analysis?

	202
	A
	Yes, to some extent.

	203
	Q
	What is the number of concurrent users expected during the peak hour of the year?

	203
	A
	50-60.

	204
	Q
	Have the AR and GL legacy systems undergone performance testing in the past and do we have any performance benchmarks/metrics? If yes, what were the performance testing tools used and their versions?

	204
	A
	Not for in-house legacy systems, no noted performance issues.

	205
	Q
	Follow on to Q82 - Experience, Reference and Resumes to be included in volume 2 response, for each bullet 1 thru 9 in the SOW.  Our understanding is reference, experience and resumes can be common for bullets 1 - 9?

	205
	A
	Ok

	206
	Q
	Is there a PNNL prescribed duration for UAT?

	206
	A
	No, looking for recommendation in this area

	207
	Q
	Is there a PNNL prescribed duration for Parallel Testing?

	207
	A
	Minimal 3 months

	208
	Q
	Follow on to Q79 and Q111: Is Performance testing in offeror’s scope?

	208
	A
	PNNL will lead, may need guidance/input.

	209
	Q
	Follow on to Q 111 – What are the activities in the limited scope of performance testing?

	209
	A
	Best practice, experience, etc.

	210
	Q
	Will PNNL provide all necessary tools and licenses to the offeror?  Please confirm as responses to Q70 and Q124 contradict with each other.

	210
	A
	All necessary licenses for Fusion apps and related tools will likely be provided by PNNL

	211
	Q
	Does “Parallel testing” refer to “Parallel running” of the old and the new system?

	211
	A
	Yes

	212
	Q
	What are the modules used in PS HCM?

	212
	A
	All Core HCM capabilities have been setup in Fusion HCM for AR and GL.

	213
	Q
	What are the modules used in PS FSCM?

	213
	A
	All procurement, treasury, expense, sub-GL for AP.
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	214
	Q
	PNNL is planning for a Parallel Run for 3 months.  Please verify below assumptions for the parallel run:

During Parallel run PNNL users will enter the transactions manually in both the systems. No automation is expected to sync both systems during parallel run.  In case of any automation, what are the expected interfaces and reports between the two systems?

	214
	A
	Manual is planned at this time.

	215
	Q
	PNNL is planning for a Parallel Run for 3 months.  Please verify below assumptions for the parallel run:

3 months Parallel run will start after 'Go-Live' of phase #2 and not before the go-live.  Saying that if PNNL plans to go-live on 10/01/2014, then there will be a parallel run for 3 months . PNNL will start using Fusion application independently  from Jan 2015 and retire legacy systems

	215
	A
	After “Go-Live” (10/1/14), we will go through a transition to operations phase and retire legacy systems. 

	216
	Q
	With reference to Volume 1 & 3 listed on pages 6 and 7 of the RFP and the proposal checklist provided on page 11, we need to understand which among the following documents of the Battelle General Provisions need to be reviewed since all the three are for different scenarios.

Battelle (1831) General Provisions

1. General Provisions Applicable to 1831-Government-Sponsored Contracts for Supplies and Services Form B-810.2 (March 2012)
2. General Provisions Applicable to 1831-Commercially Sponsored Contracts for Supplies and Services Form C-810.2 (March 2012)
3. General Provisions Applicable to Battelle Privately Funded Contracts for Supplies and Services Form D-810.1 (March 2012)

	216
	A
	Page 5 of 11 identifies the correct terms and conditions for this RFP:
Contract Contents
Each proposal submitted shall include a statement of acceptance for the following General Provisions:
· The General Provisions Applicable to Labor-Hour/Time and Materials Contracts, Form A-409.10-LH dated November 2012, apply and may be viewed at http://www.pnl.gov/contracts/documents/generalprovisions.asp. 

	217
	Q
	For the proposal instructions associated with Volume 3 – Financial Proposal, the RFP states (on p. 7 of 11) in Part A that the offeror is to complete the Contract Pricing Proposal for LH-TM Contracts form.  
This is a Word form.  Do you have this form in Excel format and/or may we create a facsimile of this form in Excel and submit that for our pricing?   

	217
	A
	We do not have an Excel version.  You may create a facsimile of the form. 

	218
	Q
	For the proposal instructions associated with Volume 3 – Financial Proposal, the RFP states (on p. 7 of 11) in Part A that the offeror is to complete the Contract Pricing Proposal for LH-TM Contracts form.  
The order of the columns in Section D of the form do not correspond to our typical rate build up work sheets.  May we change the order of the columns to match our rate build up methodology?

	218
	A
	Yes, you may change the order.  Our requirement is to see and verify the build up of your labor rate. 

	219
	Q
	For the proposal instructions associated with Volume 3 – Financial Proposal, the RFP states (on p. 7 of 11) in Part A that the offeror is to complete the Contract Pricing Proposal for LH-TM Contracts form.   
Please clarify/confirm.  Does PNNL want a separate form completed for both Phase 1 and Phase 2?  Does PNNL want a third form completed that rolls up Phase 1 and Phase 2 into a grand total?  

	219
	A
	Yes

	220
	Q
	Will the outcome of this RFP (Phase 1) lead to another RFP (Phase 2) for implementation?  Or are both of the Phases part of this same RFP and we’ll need to include both in our proposal?

	220
	A
	Please include both at this time.
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